
Thanks Phil

Larry has agreed to the conditions (see below). We got him most of the signs today and will get him the Stop 
signs in the morning.

Chris 

Sent with BlackBerry Work
(www.blackberry.com)

From: Larry Meservey Sr. <larrysr@momsnorthcountry.com>
Date: Thursday, Oct 11, 2018, 5:47 PM
To: Gamache, Christopher <Christopher.Gamache@dncr.nh.gov>
Subject: Re: Groveton Grand Opening Invitation and request

I do agree with the conditions of the temporary Permit. However You did not drop the stop signs nor the stop 
ahead sign. I will reach out to NCATV Club and or the Kilkenny trail club for those signs. If they are not 
available I will have some made tomorrow.

Thanks
Larry Sr. !!!

Larry W. Meservey Sr.
Operations Director
MOMS North Country Powersports
149 State Street, Groveton NH 03582
P: (603) 636-MOMS
C: (603) 684-8046
MOMSNORTHCOUNTRY.COM
 

  ________________________________  
From: Gamache, Christopher <Christopher.Gamache@dncr.nh.gov>
Sent: Thursday, October 11, 2018 5:06:10 PM
To: Larry Meservey Sr.
Subject: FW: Groveton Grand Opening Invitation and request 
 
Larry

http://www.blackberry.com/
mailto:Christopher.Gamache@dncr.nh.gov
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mailto:larrysr@momsnorthcountry.com


Below is the conditional permit for this weekend from DOT.
If you agree to the conditions of the email please reply to me that you agree and the temporary permit will be
considered valid.

Thanks, Chris

Sent with BlackBerry Work
(www.blackberry.com)

From: Beaulieu, Philip <Philip.Beaulieu@dot.nh.gov<mailto:Philip.Beaulieu@dot.nh.gov%3E%3E
Date: Thursday, Oct 11, 2018, 4:57 PM
To: Gamache, Christopher <Christopher.Gamache@dncr.nh.gov<mailto:Christopher.Gamache@dncr.nh.gov
%3E%3E, Sheehan, Victoria <Victoria.Sheehan@dot.nh.gov<mailto:Victoria.Sheehan@dot.nh.gov%3E%3E, 
Cass, William <William.Cass@dot.nh.gov<mailto:William.Cass@dot.nh.gov%3E%3E
Subject: RE: Groveton Grand Opening Invitation and request

Ok thank you Chris.

After internal consideration, the DOT concurs with the Department of Safety regarding the use of 
approximately 900 feet of US-3 as an OHRV on-highway connector, as well as the use of the existing 
snowmobile trail that parallels US-3 for approximately 650 feet as an OHRV off-highway connector.  The 
purpose of this proposal is so that OHRVs can gain access to the MOMs store for the Grand Opening over this 
upcoming weekend.  This approval is based on the following conditions:

General Conditions:

·         Approval is limited to Friday 10/12/18 to Sunday 10/14/18.  This approval expires ½ hour after sunset 
on Sunday 10/14/18.  Any future use of areas outside of the currently permitted trail system shall follow the 
permitting approval process outlined in NH Law and State Policies;

·         No loading or unloading of OHRVs shall occur within the highway ROW;

·         No motor vehicles, trailers or any catering or servicing equipment of any kind shall be parked within 
the highway right-of-way (ROW);

·         OHRVs shall not have studded tires or tracks;

·         Larry Meservey / MOMs shall be responsible for repairing any damage to the highway infrastructure 
that may occur as a result of this approval.

Oh-highway Connector:

·         OHRVs must use paved travel lanes;

·         OHRVs shall follow the rules of the road, including traveling in the direction of traffic, traveling in single 
file, obeying regulatory signage, and not traveling at speeds greater than the posted speed limit.

Off-highway Connector:

·         Trail signs reading “STOP” shall be installed and maintained on the trail at or near the highway 
shoulder, and a sign warning of the stop ahead shall be installed on the trail at least 100 feet back from the 
highway.

We would further request that MOMs be held responsible for coordination of a meeting between the DOT and 
DNCR – Trails Bureau within two weeks following the event to discuss their current and future plans at the 
facility and associated trail network.

Please call if you have any questions.

Regards,
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Phil

Philip L. Beaulieu, P.E.
NH Department of Transportation
Highway Maintenance – District 1
District Engineer
641 Main Street
Lancaster, NH 03584
Tel: (603) 788-4641
Fax: (603) 788-4260

From: Gamache, Christopher
Sent: Thursday, October 11, 2018 2:08 PM
To: Sheehan, Victoria; Cass, William; Beaulieu, Philip
Subject: FW: Groveton Grand Opening Invitation and request

Safety is ok with using the 30 mph zone and then the existing snowmobile trail
Chris

Sent with BlackBerry Work
(www.blackberry.com)
From: Quinn, Robert <Robert.Quinn@dos.nh.gov<mailto:Robert.Quinn@dos.nh.gov%3E%3E
Date: Wednesday, Oct 10, 2018, 4:10 PM
To: Gamache, Christopher <Christopher.Gamache@dncr.nh.gov<mailto:Christopher.Gamache@dncr.nh.gov
%3E%3E
Cc: Prince, Gary <Gary.Prince@dos.nh.gov<mailto:Gary.Prince@dos.nh.gov%3E%3E
Subject: RE: Groveton Grand Opening Invitation and request

Excellent- that seems to be the consensus from Lt. Prince and local L/E.....

From: Gamache, Christopher [mailto:Christopher.Gamache@dncr.nh.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, October 10, 2018 4:10 PM
To: Quinn, Robert
Subject: RE: Groveton Grand Opening Invitation and request

It is one of the options I put out to you

From: Quinn, Robert [mailto:Robert.Quinn@dos.nh.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, October 10, 2018 4:08 PM
To: Gamache, Christopher
Subject: FW: Groveton Grand Opening Invitation and request

Is this an option? Thanks

From: Prince, Gary
Sent: Wednesday, October 10, 2018 4:02 PM
To: Quinn, Robert; Ferry, Gregory; Encarnacao, John
Subject: RE: Groveton Grand Opening Invitation and request

I spoke with Chief Pelletier, he and I both are fine with whatever they want to do this weekend.  I would prefer
they use the existing snowmobile trail.

Gary

Sent with BlackBerry Work
(www.blackberry.com)
From: Quinn, Robert <Robert.Quinn@dos.nh.gov<mailto:Robert.Quinn@dos.nh.gov%3E%3E
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Date: Wednesday, Oct 10, 2018, 3:39 PM
To: Prince, Gary <Gary.Prince@dos.nh.gov<mailto:Gary.Prince@dos.nh.gov%3E%3E, Ferry, Gregory 
<Gregory.Ferry@dos.nh.gov<mailto:Gregory.Ferry@dos.nh.gov%3E%3E, Encarnacao, John 
<John.Encarnacao@dos.nh.gov<mailto:John.Encarnacao@dos.nh.gov%3E%3E
Subject: FW: Groveton Grand Opening Invitation and request

Lt- can we check with local law enforcement and I would also like your recommendation if this can be 
approved - thanks

Sent with BlackBerry Work
(www.blackberry.com)
From: Gamache, Christopher <Christopher.Gamache@dncr.nh.gov<mailto:Christopher.Gamache@dncr.nh.gov
%3E%3E
Date: Wednesday, Oct 10, 2018, 3:36 PM
To: Sheehan, Victoria <Victoria.Sheehan@dot.nh.gov<mailto:Victoria.Sheehan@dot.nh.gov%3E%3E, Cass, 
William <William.Cass@dot.nh.gov<mailto:William.Cass@dot.nh.gov%3E%3E, Quinn, Robert 
<Robert.Quinn@dos.nh.gov<mailto:Robert.Quinn@dos.nh.gov%3E%3E, Barthelmes, John 
<John.Barthelmes@dos.nh.gov<mailto:John.Barthelmes@dos.nh.gov%3E%3E
Cc: Prince, Gary <Gary.Prince@dos.nh.gov<mailto:Gary.Prince@dos.nh.gov%3E%3E, Beaulieu, Philip 
<Philip.Beaulieu@dot.nh.gov<mailto:Philip.Beaulieu@dot.nh.gov%3E%3E
Subject: Groveton Grand Opening Invitation and request

Commissioner Sheehan, Commissioner Cass, Commissioner Barthelmes and Commissioner Quinn;

Larry Meservey, Sr., manager of Motorcycles of Manchester (MOM’s) new Groveton location called me on 
Monday to inform us that they are having a ribbon cutting event on Saturday, at the new Groveton location, 
and that they need permission to have OHRVs travel beyond the currently permitted section of Rte 3 (in 
Groveton Village) to reach the new store.  The urgency is solely based on having Governor Sununu attending 
the event and we have been told that he will be riding in a machine from Groveton to the new store site for 
the ribbon cutting.  State Police Color Guard will also be on hand for the event and Councilor Kenney will also 
be cutting the ribbon with the Governor.  However, the area of Rte 3 near this store is not legally open for 
OHRV travel.

I apologize for the timing of this request, but we just got a call this week about it and we had no other 
knowledge of the event this weekend.  We did review this area of Rte 3 with DOT Dist 1 and Troop F this 
spring, in anticipation of this business opening up and had been waiting to hear from them about when they 
planned to be open and how we would need to configure the connector in this area.  The store location is 
within sight of the 30 mph travel zone in the village, however it is physically located in a 50 mph zone of Rte 
3.   Under the DOT Policy OHRVs cannot operate with traffic in a 50 mph zone and we would need to use the 
west side of Rte 3 to get from the 30 MPH zone to the store location.  There is an existing snowmobile trail 
along the side of Rte 3 at this location.  The future permanent trail would actually leave DOT property onto 
private lands but that trail has not been built yet.    The letter from the Town of Northumberland and minutes 
of their Select board meeting to support this future permit request is attached.

The ask is can we get an approval for 3 days of use of the full 30 mph speed zone on the north side of 
Groveton and either the existing snowmobile trail off of the side of Rte 3 or sign and have OHRVs use the 
shoulder of the 50 mph zone to get to MOM’s for this Friday, Saturday and Sunday?  We will hold MOM’s 
accountable for any repair work in the DOT ROW from this weekend and will work with them to get sufficient 
signage erected to designate the route and also to clearly note that it is for 3 days this weekend ONLY.  I have 
been working with DOT Dist 1 Engineer Phil Beaulieu on this over the past 2 days about whether it was 
feasible.  I have left a message for Lt. Prince about it but have not talked with him yet.

I apologize again for having to come to you with this short timeframe and request.

Thanks, Chris

Chris Gamache, Chief
NH Bureau of Trails
Parks & Recreation Division, DNCR
172 Pembroke Road
Concord, NH  03301
603-271-3254
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Chris.gamache@dncr.nh.gov

From: Larry Meservey Sr. [mailto:larrysr@momsnorthcountry.com]
Sent: Wednesday, October 10, 2018 3:13 PM
To: Gamache, Christopher
Subject: Grand Opening Invitation

Please find attached you invitation to Participate in the Ribbon Cutting Ceremonies by our own Governor Chris
Sununu.

Thanks

Sincerely,

Larry Sr. !!!

Larry W. Meservey Sr.

Operations Director

MOMS Lancaster| Groveton

244 Main St. Lancaster NH 03584

P: (603) 788-2281

F: (633) 788-2544
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